**FLORIDA SUPREME COURT
CASE NO.: SC 05-1384**

KEVIN BARNHILL, RAMONA
TORRES; D. WILSON; WILLIAM
McWHORTER; EUGENIA FIALA;

Petitioners,

vs.

IN RE: FLORIDA MICROSOFT
ANTI-TRUST LITIGATION,

Respondents.

CASE NO.: 3D04-2051

CONSOLIDATED WITH:

3D04-1590

3D04-1986

**BRIEF ON JURISDICTION
OF PETITIONERS BARNHILL, TORRES,
WILSON, McWHORTER, & FIALA**

James H. Cerveny
Florida Bar No.: 0878820 626
N.E. First Street, Suite B
Gainesville, FL 32601
Phone: (352) 336-6564
Facsimile: (352) 374-7133

N. Albert Bacharach, Jr.
Florida Bar No.: 209783 115
N.E. Sixth Avenue
Gainesville, FL 32601
Phone: (352) 378-9859
Facsimile: (352) 338-1858

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

On November 5, 1999, after a seventy-six day bench trial, U.S. District Court Judge Thomas Penfield Jackson issued 412 findings of fact in a consolidated anti-trust action filed by the U.S. Justice Department and the New York Attorney General. The findings show an array of anti-competitive acts by Microsoft in the market for personal computer operating systems. *United States v. Microsoft Corp.*, 84 F. Supp. 2d 9 (D.D.C. 1999). Judge Jackson's findings set off a chain reaction of class actions alleging that Microsoft's unlawful monopolization of the market injured purchasers of its software. The Florida case at issue was only one of the more than 130 such cases filed in various state and federal courts. *See In re Microsoft Corp. Antitrust Litig.*, 127 F.Supp. 2d 702, 704-705 (D.Md. 2001).

In April 2003, Microsoft entered into an agreement to settle this case with a class of Florida purchasers of Microsoft operating systems or application software. Class counsel originally requested more than \$37 million in fees, based on a lodestar of \$8.8 million and a multiplier of 4.25. Eventually, class counsel and Microsoft settled on attorneys' fees of \$15.50 million (\$8.8 million times a multiplier of 1.77). The trial court preliminarily approved the settlement on April 15, 2003.¹

¹The Settlement Agreement requires Microsoft to provide coupons in varying amounts to those class members who successfully complete a claims process. The coupons will be redeemable for purchases of software or computer

On November 3, 2003, Kevin Barnhill, Ramona Torres, D. Wilson, William McWhorter and Eugenia Fiala (hereinafter, “Petitioners” or the “Barnhill Objectors”) served their Preliminary Objections² to the proposed class action settlement, and

equipment. The asserted “*Face Amount*” of the settlement is approximately \$203 million in coupons. This figure represents the theoretical maximum value of the coupons that Microsoft must make available to class members, in the unlikely event that sufficient numbers of class members successfully complete the claims process to exhaust that amount. The value of the coupons that eligible claimants receive depends on the type of software they previously purchased.

The parties expect that the claimants who successfully complete the claims process will not be sufficient in number to exhaust the \$204 million “*Face Amount*” of the Settlement. As a result, the parties also agreed that a portion of the unclaimed coupons will be transferred to the Florida public school system, and that the remaining portion of the Settlement’s value will revert to Microsoft.

²The Barnhill objections were: (1) This is a coupon settlement. In the Multi-District litigation against Microsoft in Federal Court, wherein more or less the same practices by Defendant that are alleged in this matter were alleged therein, a proposed coupon settlement valued at approximately \$1 billion was not found acceptable by the court, primarily because the class was to receive coupons; (2) The Justice Department’s Anti-Trust case against Microsoft established that Microsoft is a monopoly, therefore, providing consumers with more than \$200 million in Microsoft coupons will create additional Anti-Trust issues by increasing Microsoft’s presence in the market place; (3) Because Florida is an “indirect purchaser” state in which treble damages are available to consumers, a settlement such as this which consists entirely of coupons is always grossly inadequate regardless of the alleged value of the coupons. This inadequacy of remedy is exacerbated by a truly cumbersome claims process in this matter; (4) The “Overview of Settlement Benefits” section of the “Notice” alleges these coupons will have “cash value”, that the coupons “can later be redeemed for cash” and that “the vouchers are good for cash rebates”. However, the truth is that the coupons have little value unless the class members use them in conjunction with the purchase of an additional approved product. Like the coupons in the Sunday paper, these “vouchers” are simply Microsoft discount coupons which have no

appeared by counsel at the hearing on November 24, 2003.

On June 29, 2004, the trial court issued a Final Judgment giving final approval to the terms of the settlement. Appellants' appeal was timely filed on July 27, 2004.

On April 6, 2005, the Third District affirmed the trial court's Order approving the settlement including the award of attorneys' fees with a multiplier of 1.77. On July 13, 2005, the Third District denied rehearing, and rehearing en banc. On the 5th day of August, 2005, the Barnhill Objectors filed a Notice to Invoke Discretionary Jurisdiction.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The Court should take jurisdiction of this case because the district court's decision directly conflicts with two other district court cases as well as prior decisions

absolute "cash value" absent the purchase of an additional product. If class counsel finds these coupons to be so valuable, then the Court should consider paying a part of the attorneys' fees in coupons; (5) There is an arbitrary \$650 limit on the transferability of the vouchers, which further reduces their limited value. Economically, there is no reason to limit the ability of the class member to sell their vouchers at a discount if they have no interest in purchasing additional products; (6) The Notice leads class members to believe that Microsoft will donate cash in the amount of 50% of the difference between \$202 million and the value of vouchers actually distributed. However, in reality, Microsoft has the option to donate its own products in lieu of money; (7) Because the Fairness Hearing is scheduled for November 24, 2003 but the deadline for filing claims is not until December 24, 2003, the actual use rate of the settlement maybe projected, but will be unknown, at the time of the fairness hearing. Therefore, the Court can only guess whether this settlement is fair because it will not know the actual amount of vouchers issued through the claims process; and, (8) the amount of attorneys' fees.

of this Court. In *Stewart Select Cars, Inc. v. Moore*, 619 So.2d 1037, 1038 (Fla. 4th DCA 1993), the Fourth DCA held that a “contingency risk multiplier is inappropriate” when setting fees under the FDUTPA. In *Corvette Shop & Supplies, Inc. v. Coggins*, 779 So.2d 529, 531 (Fla. 2d DCA 2000), the Second DCA said “we ... hold that the contingency risk multiplier should not have been applied in this case where the award of attorney’s fees was based on section 501.2105.” Equally significantly, in *Standard Guaranty Insurance Co. v. Quanstrom*, 555 So.2d 828, 834 (Fla. 1990), this Court stated that in fee shifting “public policy enforcement cases” involving matters such as “consumer protection”, specifically, citing FDUTPA as an example – there is no multiplier. Similarly, the United States Supreme Court in *City of Burlington v. Dague*, 505 U.S. 557 (1992) explicitly rejected multipliers in fee shifting cases.

The District Court’s decision also directly conflicts with this Court’s decision in *Schick v. Department of Agric. & Consumer Svcs.*, 599 So.2d 641 (Fla.1992).

Although the District Court’s opinion purported to distinguish *Stewart Select Cars* and *Corvette Shop*, because the instant case was settled rather than fully litigated, such a distinction is contrary to both common sense and public policy.

ARGUMENT

THIS COURT HAS JURISDICTION TO REVIEW THE THIRD DISTRICT'S DECISION AFFIRMING THE AWARD OF A MULTIPLIER TO CLASS COUNSEL UNDER A FEE SHIFTING STATUTE CONTRARY TO THIS COURT'S EARLIER DECISIONS AND OTHER DCA OPINIONS.

The “lodestar” of \$8.8 million reflecting some 20,000 hours of time (over 9 person years of time) is not challenged by Objectors. Rather, it is Objectors’ position that the application of a multiplier is legal error. Under Florida law, class counsel are not entitled to an award of a multiplier.

The only cause of action claimed was a violation of the Florida Deceptive and Unfair Trade Practices Act (“FDUTPA”). No multiplier is permitted when awarding attorneys’ fees in cases brought under the FDUTPA. In *Stewart Select Cars, Inc. v. Moore*, 619 So.2d 1037, 1038 (Fla. 4th DCA 1993) the Fourth DCA said “contingency risk multiplier is inappropriate” when setting fees under the FDUTPA. In *Corvette Shop & Supplies, Inc. v. Coggins*, 779 So.2d 529, 531 (Fla. 2d DCA 2000) the Second DCA said “we ... hold that the contingency risk multiplier should not have been applied in this case where the award of attorney’s fees was based on section 501.2105.” Additionally, in *Standard Guaranty Insurance Co. v. Quanstrom*, 555 So.2d 828, 834 (Fla. 1990) this Court stated that in fee shifting “public policy enforcement cases” involving matters such as “consumer protection”, specifically

citing FDUTPA as an example – there is no multiplier. This mirrors the opinion of the United States Supreme Court rejecting multipliers in fee shifting cases. *Dague, supra*, at 562, 566, 567.

The District Court’s decision also directly conflicts with this Court’s decision in *Schick v. Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services*, 599 So.2d 641, 643 (Fla.1992) wherein this Court held:

[T]hat where the legislature has set forth specific criteria for determining reasonable attorney's fees to be awarded pursuant to a fee-authorizing statute, the trial judge is bound to use only enumerated criteria.³

The United States Supreme Court has “established a ‘strong presumption’ that the lodestar represents the ‘reasonable’ fee.” *City of Burlington v. Dague*, 505 U.S. 557, 562 (1992). In *Dague*, the Court determined “that enhancement for contingency is not permitted under the [federal] fee-shifting statutes at issue.” *Dague, supra*, at 567. This ruling is applicable to *all* federal fee-shifting statutes regardless of their subject matter. The Court explicitly stated that “our case law construing what is a ‘reasonable’ fee applies uniformly to all of them [federal fee-shifting statutes].” *Id.*

³Although *Schick* was apparently superseded by statute as it applies to eminent domain cases; *see State Dept. of Transp. v. Skinners Wholesale Nursery, Inc.*, 736 So.2d 3 (Fla. 1st DCA 1998), the Court’s holding still applies to other fee-shifting statutes such as DUPTA.

at 562. Consequently, a reasonable fee is to be determined without regard for contingent risks. *Id.* at 566.

Further, the Court found that if contingency enhancement were to be used in *any* contingent fee cases (brought under fee-shifting statutes), it would have to be applied to *all* such cases. *Id.* at 565. This result would, the Court reasoned, encourage non-meritorious claims to be brought, which is against public policy and Congressional intent. *Id.* at 563. The Court therefore concluded that “just as the statutory language limiting fees bars a prevailing plaintiff from recovering fees relating to claims on which he lost, so should it bar a prevailing plaintiff from recovering for the risk of loss.” *Id.* at 565. The Court was especially concerned with the fact that “[t]o award a contingency enhancement under a fee-shifting statute would in effect pay for the attorney’s time (or anticipated time) in cases where his client does *not* prevail.” *Id.* Thus, the Court concluded, “[i]t is neither necessary nor even possible for application of the fee-shifting statutes to mimic the intricacies of the fee-paying market in every respect.” *Id.* at 566-67.

The Third District held that *Stewart Select Cars* and *Corvette Shop* are inapplicable to the instant case because the instant case involved a fee agreement rather than an award of fees after a jury verdict. This distinction is without merit. The Third District did not elaborate on its reasoning as to why a negotiated fee

agreement would render a multiplier acceptable when it is clearly not warranted in cases which are actually litigated through trial. Neither *Stewart Select Cars* nor *Corvette Shop* limited their holdings to cases which went to trial. Moreover, the policy concerns outlined in *Dague* are not affected by the fact that the fees were part of a negotiated settlement.⁴

Furthermore, there is a significant conflict of interest at issue which should have precluded class counsel from seeking a fee in excess of their lodestar. Had the case been tried, class counsel would have been limited to their lodestar to be paid by the defendant pursuant to F.S. §501.2105. In this FDUTPA case, the plaintiffs, if the case had been tried, were entitled to have a statutory award of their counsel's hourly fees paid by the defendant. However, class counsel agreed to settle the case. By so

⁴The Third District apparently accepted the Respondents' arguments that because the parties settled, there was no "prevailing party" under FDUPTA and therefore the Court was free to apply a multiplier that would have been precluded by this statute if they were to prevail at trial. This argument defies logic as well as the public policy concerns set forth in *Dague*. See generally *Staton vs. Boeing*, 327 F.3d 938 (9th Cir. 1993) in which the court stated that if the "amount of fees that Boeing agreed to pay in the settlement agreement [was] distinctly higher than the fees class counsel could have been awarded by the district court using the lodestar method, the court would have almost surely have had to find the fees unreasonable." Although this particular situation was not before the Third Circuit in *Brytus vs. Spang*, 203 F.3d 238 (3d Cir. 2000) the court nonetheless warned "courts have to be alert to the possibility that the parties have adopted [their particular settlement agreement] precisely because the fee award is in fact higher than could be supported on a statutory fee-shifting basis. . . ." *Id.* at 970.

doing, they created circumstances permitting them to now seek, and be awarded, a fee which exceeds their lodestar by almost \$7 million. Thus, class counsel in negotiating a settlement set the stage by which they became the exclusive beneficiaries of a \$6.8 million windfall.

The basic conflict of interest is this: if class counsel proceeded to do their work, complete the trial, with the hope of prevailing at trial, they would be entitled to only their hourly fees and these fees would be paid by defendant. By settling, the case class counsel are in conflict with their clients' interests because: (a) the fee they seek exceeds what they would be entitled to under the fee shifting statutory fee award pursuant to F.S. §501.2105 and (b) those fees must be seen as diminishing the amount Microsoft was willing to expend in payment to class members for Microsoft's unfair and deceptive trade practices in Florida.

The conflict is clear if the court contrasts the lucrative fees negotiated by class counsel with the settlement in the Florida action. The settlement is grossly inadequate particularly when compared with the settlement entered into by Microsoft in the national direct purchaser case in the U.S. District Court of Maryland (subsequent to the objection deadline in this case) which provides that:

- a) Each class member will receive one hundred percent of the alleged damages, i.e., **55%** of the purchase price of the Microsoft products;

- b) That settlement amount is payable one hundred percent in **cash**;
- c) The attorney's fees agreed to by counsel are actually less than the **lodestar** in the case when combined with expenses.

d)

In this case, however, the Class Members are not getting even remotely close to 55% of the purchase price, and even that amount is being "paid" in coupons and not in cash. All for this the attorneys are receiving a 1.7 multiplier of their lodestar although Florida law and the FDUTPA precludes a multiplier.

CONCLUSION

This case presents precisely the type of policy concern that the United States Supreme Court outlined in *Dague* and further illustrates the conflict between the Third District's decision with that of *Dague*. Even ignoring *Dague*, the Third District's decision approving the multiplier flies in the face of Court's rulings in *Quanstrom* and *Schick*. The decision conflicts directly with the Second DCA and the Fourth DCA. For the foregoing reasons, this Court should take jurisdiction of this case.