Case No. SC 05-1384

FLORIDA SUPREME COURT

KEVIN BARNHILL, et al.
Petitioners,

v.

SHELBY HARTMAN, et al.,
Plaintiffs/Respondents

v.

MICROSOFT CORPORATION,
Defendant/Respondent.

On Appeal from the Third District Court of Appeals of Florida Case No. 3D04-2051, Consolidated With 3D04-1590; 3D04-1986

BRIEF IN OPPOSITION TO PETITIONERS' BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

Robert L. Parks (FL Bar # 161436)
Haggard & Parks, PA
330 Alhambra Cir.
Coral Gables, FL 33133

INTRODUCTION

Petitioner's motion to invoke this Court's discretionary jurisdiction should be denied. Petitioners fail to demonstrate that the test for conflict jurisdiction is satisfied. Accordingly, this appeal should be dismissed pursuant to Article 5, §3(b)(3) of the Florida Constitution and Rule 9.030(2)(iv) of the Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

I. Proceedings In The Trial Court and The Attorneys' Fee Award.

On November 24, 1999, the Plaintiffs filed this class action against Microsoft, both individually and on behalf of all persons or entities in Florida similarly situated alleging a violation of FDUTPA. After several years of briefing, discovery, and extensive settlement negotiations, Plaintiffs and Microsoft entered into a settlement agreement which provides the class with significant benefits targeted to the wrongdoing alleged in Plaintiff's complaint.¹ Courts in the District of Columbia, Kansas, Massachusetts, Montana, North Carolina, North Dakota, South Dakota, Tennessee, Vermont, and West Virginia have either preliminarily or

¹ Specifically, it requires that Microsoft will provide up to \$202 million in vouchers which can be used to purchase computer hardware and software, including hardware and software that is manufactured and/or sold by Microsoft's competitors. Vouchers may be aggregated by class members and are transferable to both class members and non-class members up to \$650. In addition, half of the money allocated which is not redeemed by class members will be donated to Florida schools in the form of vouchers which may be used to purchase computer hardware, software, training, and support.

finally approved settlements against Microsoft with nearly identical terms.

Pursuant to the settlement, Microsoft agreed to pay a “reasonable attorneys’ fee” in addition to the benefits it agreed to provide the class. Plaintiffs and Microsoft began negotiating this fee only after the terms of the settlement were agreed upon and preliminarily approved by the trial court. Accordingly, the attorneys’ fees paid by Microsoft did not impact the class benefits paid by Microsoft. In fact, the attorneys’ fees were paid directly from Microsoft to class counsel—not from the class members’ recovery—and therefore did not alter the benefits that Microsoft agreed to pay for the class.

The parties negotiated a fee of \$15.5 million plus expenses. This figure represents the class counsel’s lodestar of approximately \$8 million, plus a contingency risk multiplier of 1.77 and includes payment for post-settlement work such as preparing this brief, as well as the briefs submitted to the Court of Appeals.²

II. Proceedings In The District Court of Appeals.

Petitioners appealed the trial court’s approval of the Settlement Agreement to the Third District Court of Appeals. There, Petitioners contended that the trial court erred in approving the settlement because, among other things, the attorneys’ fees agreed upon entailed a contingency risk multiplier. However, Petitioners

² Objectors do not challenge class counsel’s lodestar—only the application of the contingency risk multiplier.

failed to cite a shred of record support for their contentions that the settlement agreement should be undone. Their brief did not contain a single record citation for any proposition at all. On April 6, 2005, the Court of Appeals affirmed the trial court's order giving final approval to the settlement.

Petitioners now ask this Court to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction to review the Court of Appeals' decision. Petitioners' request should be denied.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Petitioners have failed to demonstrate that a conflict exists warranting exercise of the Court's jurisdiction pursuant to Article 5, §3(b)(3) of the Florida Constitution and Rule 9.030(2)(iv) of the Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure.

Petitioners contend that the Court of Appeals' decision "directly conflicts with two other district court cases as well as prior decisions of this Court."

Petitioners are flatly wrong. The decisions they point to as posing decisional conflicts involve the use of a multiplier to arrive at attorneys' fees awards pursuant to a statutory directive. By contrast, the attorneys' fees in this case were agreed upon as part of a settlement: they were not awarded pursuant to a statute and are therefore not subject to any statutory limitations. Indeed, private settlements which include attorneys' fee awards based on the use of a multiplier are routinely upheld by Florida courts. Accordingly, no conflict exists and this Court's discretionary should not be exercised.

ARGUMENT

I. The Standard For The Exercise of Discretionary Conflict Jurisdiction.

This Court's direct conflict jurisdiction is a two-tiered concept: "The first [tier] is a general grant of discretionary subject-matter jurisdiction, and the second [tier] is a constitutional command as to how the discretion itself may be exercised."

Tippens v. State of Florida, 897 So.2d 1278, 1280 (Fla. 2005), quoting Florida Star

II, 530 So.2d 286, 288 (Fla. 1988). The Court has described the first-tier

limitations thusly:

This Court does not, however, have subject-matter jurisdiction over a district court opinion that fails to expressly address a question of law, such as [a decision] issued without opinion or citation....Moreover, there can be no actual conflict discernible in an opinion containing only a citation to other case law unless one of the cases cited as controlling authority is pending before this Court, or has been reversed on appeal or review, or receded from by this Court, or unless the citation explicitly notes a contrary holding of another district court or of this Court.

Florida Star II, 530 So.2d at 288 n. 3. See also Weston v. Nathanson, 173 So.2d

451 (Fla. 1965) ("In order to proceed to the merits we must find a direct conflict

between the instant decision and a prior decision of this Court or another District

Court of Appeal."); Fla.R.App.Pro. 9.030(2)(A)(iv) ("The discretionary jurisdiction

of the supreme court may be sought to review decisions of district courts of appeal

that expressly and directly conflict with a decision of another district court of

appeal or of the supreme court on the same question of law.").

Where the district court decision implicates fundamentally different facts than the decisions going before it, no conflict may be said to exist:

While conceivably there may be other circumstances, the principal situations justifying the invocation of our jurisdiction to review decisions of Court[s] of Appeal because of alleged conflicts are (1) the announcement of a rule of law which conflicts with a rule previously announced by this Court; or (2) the application of a rule of law to produce a different result in a case which involves substantially the same controlling facts as a prior case disposed of by this Court....Under the second situation, the controlling facts become vital and our jurisdiction may be asserted only where the Court of Appeal has applied a recognized rule of law to reach a conflicting conclusion in a case involving substantially the same controlling facts as were involved in allegedly conflicting prior decisions of this Court.

Nielson v. City of Sarasota, 117 So.2d 731 (Fla. 1960); quoting Florida Power & Light Co. v. Bell, 113 So.2d 697 (Fla. 1959).

II. Petitioners Have Failed to Demonstrate That The Standard for Discretionary Conflict Jurisdiction Is Met.

Petitioners have failed to demonstrate that the standard for discretionary conflict jurisdiction is met. Petitioners argue that the District Court's order upholding the trial court's approval of the settlement conflicts with two decisions of other district courts of appeal: Stewart Select Cars, Inc. v. Moore, 619 So.2d 1037 (Fla. 4th DCA 1993) and Corvette Shop & Supplies, Inc. v. Coggins, 779 So.2d 529 (Fla. 2d DCA 2000). Additionally, Petitioners contend that the District Court's order conflicts with this Court's decision in Schick v. Department of

Agriculture and Consumer Services, 599 So.2d 641 (Fla. 1992). As demonstrated below, however, none of these cases posits a conflict because all of those cases are factually distinguishable from this case.

A. The Decisions Petitioners Cite As Creating Decisional Conflicts Are Factually Distinguishable From This Case And Can Therefore Not Create A Conflict.

The decisions Petitioners cite as creating a decisional conflict with the Court of Appeals' decision bear no factual similarity to this case. In both Stewart Select Cars, Inc. v. Moore, 619 So.2d 1037 (Fla. 4th DCA 1993) and Corvette Shop & Supplies, Inc. v. Coggins, 779 So.2d 529 (Fla. 2d DCA 2000), attorneys' fees were awarded pursuant to FDUTPA *after a trial on the merits*—not in connection with a settlement agreement reached between the parties. Stewart, 619 So.2d at 1037 (“The case...resulted in a jury verdict and judgment...”); Corvette Shop, 779 So.2d at 529.

Similarly, in Standard Guaranty Insurance Co. v. Quanstrom, 555 So.2d 828 (Fla. 1990) and Schick v. Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, 599 So.2d 641 (Fla. 1992) attorneys' fees were awarded after a final judgment in favor of the plaintiff was entered—not in connection with a settlement agreement. Quanstrom, 555 So.2d at 829 (“the district court then directed the trial court to

enter a final judgment in favor of [the plaintiff]”); Schick, 599 So.2d at 642 (“successful inverse condemnation case”).³

Indeed, the statute allows for an award of attorneys’ fees only to a “prevailing party.” See Fl.St. 501.2105 (“In any civil litigation resulting from an act or practice involving a violation of this part...the prevailing party...may receive his or her reasonable attorney’s fees and costs from the non-prevailing party.”). There are no prevailing parties in settlement agreements. As this Court stated in Green Companies, Inc. v. Kendall Racquetball Investment, 658 So.2d 1119 (Fla. 3d DCA 1995), the “prevailing party for purposes of attorneys’ fees is the party prevailing on the significant issues in the litigation...The fairest test to determine who is the prevailing party is to allow the trial judge to determine from the record which party in fact prevailed on the significant issues tried before the court.” Green Companies, 658 So.2d 1119, 1120. This test has no application to a settlement agreement.

As there was no “prevailing party” in this case, the attorneys’ fee award could not, as a matter of law, been made pursuant to FDUTPA. Accordingly, the Petitioners’ argument that a conflict exists between the District Court’s decision

³ Quanstrom and Schick are further distinguishable in that neither of them are FDUTPA cases. To the extent Petitioners rely on the United States Supreme Court’s ruling in City of Burlington v. Dague, 505 U.S. 557 (1992), such reliance is unwise, as the Objectors admit that that case involves *federal fee shifting statutes*. No fee shifting statute is applicable here—let alone a federal one.

and decisions indicating that the use of a contingency risk multiplier is inappropriate in FDUTPA cases fails as a matter of law.

B. The Use of A Contingency Risk Multiplier In Class Litigation Is Routinely Upheld By Florida Courts.

Moreover, the use of a contingency risk multiplier in class litigation such as this is routinely upheld by Florida courts. In Kuhnlein v. Dept. of Revenue, 662 So.2d 308 (Fla. 1995), the court recognized that the application of a contingency risk multiplier to the lodestar is appropriate in recognition of the risk inherent in class litigation: “[W]e believe that the contingency risk factor, the results obtained and the other lodestar factors are more equitably taken into consideration by accepting or adjusting the lodestar calculation and by permitting the use of multipliers.” Likewise, in Ramos v. Philip Morris Co., 743 So.2d 24 (Fla. 3d DCA 1999), a case very similar to this one in that the attorneys’ fee award was negotiated separately from the substantive portions of the settlement, this Court approved the use of a multiplier in light of the “extraordinarily risky” nature of the litigation and the “substantial results for the class’ benefit.” Ramos, 743 So.2d at 32.

Therefore, the District Court’s decision upholding the trial court’s approval of the use of a multiplier is well-supported by Florida law and cannot be the basis for a decisional conflict.

CONCLUSION

The Petitioners have failed to demonstrate that an express and direct conflict exists between the District Court's decision and any other decision from any other Florida Court. Accordingly, the exercise of this Court's discretionary jurisdiction is not appropriate. Petitioners' motion should be denied.

One of the Attorneys for Plaintiffs Shelby
Hartman, et al.

OF COUNSEL:

Alan M. Grunspan
Niall T. McLachlan
KAUFMAN, MILLER, DICKSTEIN &
GRUNSPAN, P.A.
4650 First Union Financial Center
200 S. Biscayne Boulevard
Miami, FL 33131

Robert L. Parks
HAGGARD & PARKS, P.A.
330 Alhambra Circle
Coral Gables, FL 33133

Jack B. Baldwin
BALDWIN & BALDWIN, L.L.P.
400 West Houston Street
P.O. Drawer 1349
Marshall, TX 70567

Jere F. White, Jr.
Robin H. Hinkle
LIGHTFOOT, FRANKLIN & WHITE,
LLC
The Clark Building
400 20th Street North Birmingham, AL
35203

Daniel Hume
Joanne M. Cicala
KIRBY MCINERNEY & SQUIRE,
LLP
830 Third Avenue
New York, NY 10022

Michele C. Jackson
LIEFF, CABRASHER, HEIMANN &
BERNSTEIN, LLP

James Joseph Thompson, Jr.
Bruce Jones McKee
HARE, WYNN, NEWELL &
NEWTON, L.L.P.
The Massey Building, Suite 800
2025 Third Avenue North
Birmingham, AL 35203-3331

275 Battery Street,
Suite 3000
San Francisco, CA 94111-3339